R. S, SANGHAI & ASSOCIATES
Ghartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report:

To the Members of,
CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements:

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CACHET
PHARMACGEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and audifing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of
the Company as at 31% March, 2018, and its financial performance including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
hest of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income) and the statement of cash flow and the statement of
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changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rule issued there under.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31"
March, 2018, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31t March, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) with respect to the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”; and

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements as referred to in Note 3.30 to the Ind
AS financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i there were no amounts which were required to be fransferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For R.S, SANGHAI & ASSOCIATES
hartered Accountants
irm’s registration number: 109094W

NN 2%
B
_R.S. SANGHAI
/ Partner
M, No, : 036931

Mumbai : 18™ May, 2018
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Re: CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report:

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 315 March, 2018, we report that:

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

ii)

Vi)

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature
of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have
been noticed.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(@) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals,

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared
to books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account
were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii)
(@) to (C) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company as
specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
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Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
records are maintained by the Company.

vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

(b)

examination of the records of the Company amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Goods & Service Tax, Income-Tax, Sales
tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and
any other statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31° March, 2018,
for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become
payable.

According to the information and explanations given {o us and the records of
the company examined by us, there are no dues of customs duty, goods &
service tax & excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute. The particulars of dues of sales-tax, service tax & income tax as at 31%
March, 2018, which have not been deposited on account of dispute, are as
follows-

Period
Total Amount to
Name of Nature of Amount | deposited | which Forum wher'e
the the dispute is
Statute Dues (Rs. In (Rs. in the endin
Lakhs) Lakhs) | amount P g
relates
pgfigle Aésistant
Sales Tax . CommiAVAT
Delhi aganjst 0.90 - 2010-11 O(ward 60),
pending Delhi
form(s)
Value Value Dy.
Added Tax | Added Tax Commission,
Uttar & Penalty 6.11 3.36 2015-16 | & ommercial
Pradesh thereon Tax, Lucknow
Sr. Joint
Value Value v
Commigsioner
Added Tax | Added Tax | ¢ 55 . 2012-13 | Commercial
West & Penalty
B | " Tax, West
enga 1ereon Bengal
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Finance . CESTAT New
Ac:‘_t,1994 Service Tax 7.03 - 2010-11 Delhi
Income \
Tax Act Income 6.29 i 2011-12 | DCIT Circle-l,
Tax Patna
1961
Income
TaxAct | [IMOMe | ge g 3.00 | 2014-15 | CIT (Appeal),
Tax Patna-1
1961
Income Income
Tax Act Tax 14.65 - 2015-16 CPC
1961
Total 101.82 8.36

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowing to
banks/financial institution. The Company has not taken any loan from the
government and has not issued any debentures.

ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans.
Accordingly, the provisions of para 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon,

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

xif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given fo us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of para 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed
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in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of para 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
fransactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented uport.

xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 |A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3

(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

For R.S. SANGHAI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 109094W

_R.S. SANGHAI
& Pariner

M, No.: 036831

Mumbai : 18™ May, 2018
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Re: CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March,
2018, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with

8
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reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
hased on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference o financial statementis is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Ind AS financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference o
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial confrols with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 315 March, 2018, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

o,

o
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the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For R.8. SANGHAI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Fiem's registration number: 109094W

.S. SANGHAI
4 Partner
M. No.: 036931
Mumbai : 18" May, 2018

10



CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2018

Note As at As at
PARTICULARS No Fist March, 2018 31st March, 2017
: s, In Lakhs Rs, in Lakhs
. ASSETS
1 Non-Gurrent Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 9,469.17 7,860.21
(b) Capital work in progress 3.1 - 623.80
(¢) Other intangible assels 3.1 89.10 93,37
{d) Financial assets
() investments 3.2 1.186 1.18
(i) Loans 3.3 169.80 204.06
(iliy Other non-current financial assets 3.4 515.02 2.52
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 3.5E 791.94 265.65
() Other tax assets (net} 3.50 206.53 203.12
{g) Other non-current assets 3.6 27.85 161.20
Total Non-Current Assets 14,270.66 9,415.08
2 Current Assets
(a) lnventories 3.7 4,202.38 4,338.45
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 3.8 5,376.28 4,957.49
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 3.9 401.14 413.86
(iiiy Bank balances other than (i) above 3.10 8.48 8.42
(iv) Loans 311 162.37 123.71
(iv) Other current financial assels 3.12 99,77 37.25
(c) Other current assets 313 930.25 236.65
Total Current Assels 11,120,867 10,115.83
TOTAL ASSETS 22,381.33 19,530.91
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(@) Equity share capital 3.14 17.83 17.83
{b) Other equity (Refer Statement of changes in Equity) 4,325.41 5,432.31
Total Equity 4,343.24 5,450.14
2 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 3.15 2,702.62 2,677.08
(b) Provisions 3.16 863.71 801.67
(¢) Other non-current liabllities 317 431.60 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,987.83 3,478.70
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 3.18 2,962.19 2,765.02
(i) Trade payables 3.19 8,414.42 5,689.57
(iity Other current financial liabilities 3.20 1,677.142 1,399.56
(by Other current Habilities 3.21 440.69 206.43
(c) Provisions 3.22 555.74 541.49
Total Current Liabilities 14,050.16 10,602.07
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22,891.33 19,530.91

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Critical Accounting Judgements & Estimations 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our Report attached of even date,
JRor R, 8. SANGHAL & ASSOCIATES
hartered Accountants

For & on behalf of the Board,
CACGHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Cl%lZéZ(}OBR“I 978PTCO01328)

rm Reg No: 108093W L
A A
e / A éi;é/ : / i{%fﬁy\
P e Banghat 5.K.Slngh AruhKugar shm#u&&"r””
7 Partner WManaging Director Independent fecior
Membership No: 036931 (DIN : §0245703) (DIN No.07210367)

Place: Murnbai

%



CACHEY PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Dated:18th, May 2018

For the year For the year
ended ended
PARTICULARS Note No.| 315t March, 2018| 31st March, 2017
Re, in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
Income:
Revenue from operations 3.23 31,159.56 30,194.84
Other income 1 3.24 62.00 13.20
Total Income 31,221.56 30,208.04
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 3.25 7,854.92 6,100.97
Purchases of stock-in-trade 9,965.77 11,366.16
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and stock-in-trade 3.26 737.21 (1064.68)
Employee benefits expense 3.27 6,005.64 §,642 43
Finance costs 3.28 696.18 382.66
Depreciation and amortization expense 3.1 §79.11 376.25
Other expenses 3.29 7,386.18 7,984.01
Total Expenses 32,925.01 30,687.81
Profit Before Tax {1703.45) 479.77)
Tax Expense: 35A
Current Tax w .
Deferred Tax (Net) (548.23) (114.97)
Prior Period Tax Adjustment - 48.82
Total Tax Expense (548.23) (86.15)
Profit After Tax (1155.23) (413.62)
Qther Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 70.33 (44.45)
- Tax on Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (21.94) 14.69
Total of Other Comprehensive Income for the period, 48.39 (29.75)
net of tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1106.83) {443.37)
Earnings per equity share (In Rs.): 3.33
Basic (6,477.66) (2,483.77)
Dituted (6,477.66) (2,483.77)
Face Value of Equity Share (In Rs.) 100.00 100.00
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Critical Accounting Judgements & Estimations 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our Report atiached of even date, For & on behalf of the Board,
EnrR. 8. SANGHAI & :QSSOCIATES CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
(§aﬁered Accountants - (C /UQQZSOBMS}?BPTCOMSZS)
Fi Reg No: 109094\/\/ o~ ;
1R w
3 \ / "“} - v}@%
ﬁ}-’;Sanghal | { «&,a K Smgh Arunid éﬁ‘h
Partner Managing Director !ndependea%ﬁnector !
Membaership No: 036931 (DIN : 00245703) (DIN: 07210367)




CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED For the year ended 31sty}  For the year ended 31st
’ fWiarch, 2018 March, 2017
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MIARCH, 2018 Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
|Cash Flow from Operating Actlvity:
Net {Loss)/Profit before Tax {1,703.43) (479.77)
Adiustment for:
Depreciation & amortisation 579.11 376.25
Provision for gratuity & compensated leave 83.80 145,55
Provision doubtful debts 187.36 36.28
Provision for anticipated sales return 62.82 80.27
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments 16.67 25.56
Dividend received {0.18) (0.13)
Net interest paid 670,50 354.09
Subtotal of adjustments 1,600.08 1.020.88
Operating profit before working capital changes (103.35) 541,11
Adjustment for:
Trade and other receivables (606.16) 430.12
Loans & other financial assets and other current assets {1,079.82) (114.25)
inventories 136.06 (1,103.58)
Trade payable & other liabilities 3,668.28 687.20
Bank borrowings avaiied 19719 423.59
Subtotal of adjustments 2,315,865 323.08
Cash generated from operations 2,212.20 864.20
Less: Direct taxes paid {3.40) (225.31)
Cash Flow before extraordinary items
Net Cash {used) generated Operating Activities 2,208.79 638.89
Cash Flow from Investing Actlvities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipments (Net) (1,843.81) (4.351.60)
Sale of property, plant and equipments (Net) 67.04 31.16
Dividend received 0.18 0.13
Interest received 12.92 17.07
Net Cash (used)/ generated in investing activities {1,563.67) (4,303.25)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
lssue of share capital B -
Long term borrowings 25.58 1,075.18
interest paid {683.42) (371.16)
Net Cash (used)/ generated in Financing Activities {657.84) 3,203.55
Net Increase!/ {(Decrease} in Cash & Cash Eguivalents (A+B+C) {(12.72) {460.80)
Cash & Cash Egujvalents as at 1st April, 2017 413.86 874.66
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2018 (D+E 401.14 413.86

Notes:

1. Cash & Cash Equivalents include cash and Bank Balances in Current Accounts and in Deposit Accounts

{Refer Note 3.9 of the Accounts).

2. Additions to Property, plant and equipmentis (including Capital Work In Progress) are considered as a part of investing activities.

3. Interest Income on Bank Deposits is classified as cash flow from Investing Activities.

4. Apove Cash Flow Statements is preparad under the "indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (IND AS-7) "

Statement of Cash Flow”.

5 Previous Year's figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary,

Significant Accounting Policies
Critical Accounting Judgements & Estimations
Notes to the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

1
2
3

As per our Report altached of even date,
For R. §. SANGHAIL 8 ASSOCIATES
Ghartered Accountants
Reg No; 108094W

Ny

Membership No: 036931
Place: Mumbai
Dated:18th May, 2018

For & on behalf of the Board,

CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
{CIN:U24230BR1978PTC001328)

$K.Singh
Managing Director

(DIN : 00245703)

independ ~ Director
(DIN : 07210367)




{a} Equity share capltal

CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2018

{Rs in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

Particulars No. of Shares Amount | No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the begining of the reporting period 17,834 17.83 17,834 17.83
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - = -
Balance at the end of the reporting perlod 17,834 17.83 17,834 17.83
(b} Other equity (Rs in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital roserve | Securities | General regerve| Retained Other Total other
premium sarning comprehensive equity
account income/(loss)
Balance as at 1st Apeil 2017 31.00 2,496.70 2,500.00 451.93 (47.33) 5,432.31
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31st March, 2018
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (1,155.23) - (1,155.23)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year ) . y 48.39 48.39
{net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the yoar
- N - . . 1, 83
ended 31st March, 2018 (1155.23) 48391 (1,106.83)
Balance as at 31st March 2018 31.00 2,496.70 2,500.00 (703.30) 1.08 4,325.41

As per our Report attached of even date,
ForR. 8. SANGHAI & ASSOCIATES
(;}haﬂered Accountants

R.8.8anghal
Partner
Membership No: 036931
Place: Mumbai
Dated:18th May, 2018

For & on behalf of the Board,
CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
(C!N:U2423OBR1978PTCOO1328)

””jé.K.Singh
Managing Director
(DIN : 00245703)

ArunkdmarDestim

independei Director

(DIN No.07210367)

Jlr
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH 2018

1B

1.1

b)
¢)

d)

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Company overview and Significant Accounting policies

Company overview

Cachet Pharmaceuticals Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in 1978 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 of India, as a company with limited liability. The Company
is domiciled in India with its registered office address being Exhibition Road, P.S. Gandhi
Maidan, Patna - 800001, India.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements: .

Statement of Compliance

The financial statemenis of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018 have
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS') notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in consultation with the National Advisory Commitiee on
Accounting Standards, under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant provisions
of the Act.

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
at their meeting held on 18" May 2018.

Basis of preparation & presentation

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 2. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or infended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setlle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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1.2

a)
b)
c)
d)

i

A liability is classified as current when:

Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Functional & presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees which is the functional currency of
the company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates.

Property, plant and equipment:

Recognition and Measurement

a) ltems of Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and

b)

¢)

ill.

impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
statement of profit & loss.

Cost of ltems of Property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use as on the balance
sheet date, is disclosed as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of
Property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as
Capital Advance under Other non-current assets,

ii. Subsequent axpenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results
in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard
of performance.

Depreciation & amortisation

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line (SLM) basis for all assets. Depreciation is provided
based on the useful life of assets. The carrying amount of the fixed assets as on 1st April,
2014 is depreciated over the remaining useful life,
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1.3

iv

Tangibie Assets Useful Life
Leasehold Land 30 Years
Building 30 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Computers 3 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years

Intangible Assets;

Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets such as compuier software that are acquired by the Company and have
finite useful life are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure, including
expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the statement of
profit & loss.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight line method over their estimated useful life, and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

The estimated useful lives for current & comparative periods are as follows:

Tangible Assets Useful Life

Computer Software 5 Years

impalrment of Assets:

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
(other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment. For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs. The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the c:zarrying@@aym of an asset or CGU exceeds

; -
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1.5

its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset,

Financial Assets

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the Company’s business mode! for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

b) Those to be measured at amortised cost.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or

other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the

recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instrurnents.

The Company follows trade date accounting for all regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets,

i} Amortised Cost

The Company classifies its financial assefs as at amortised cost only if both of the
following criteria are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows, and

b) The conftractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
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Financial assets at amortised cost include loans receivable, trade and other receivables, and
other financial assets that are held with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows.
After initial measurement at fair value, the financial assets are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the statement of profit & loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in other income.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
debt securities and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance
Sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in profit or loss.
Interests, dividends and gain/loss on foreign exchange on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included separately in other income.

If Company elects to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments shall continue to be recognised in profit or
loss as other income when the Company's’ right to receive payments is established. There
are no impairment requirements for equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
statement of profit & loss shall be recognised in other gain/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18
Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. present
value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial asset. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows that are due in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the company expects to receive. The expected credit losses consider the amount
and timing of payments and hence, a credit loss arises even if the Company expects to
receive the payment in full but later than when contractually due. The expected credit loss
method requires to assess credit risk, default and timing of collection since initial recognition.
This requires recognising allowance for expected credit losses in profit or loss even for
receivables that are newly originated or acquired.

Impairment of financial assets Is measured as either 12 month expected credit losses or life

time expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk since initial recognition. “12 month expecteg-gredit losses’ represent the expected
7 .
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credit losses resulting from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. ‘Lifetime expected credit losses’ represent the expected credit losses that
“result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

Trade receivables are of a short duration, normally less than 12 months and hence the loss

allowance measured as lifetime expected credit losses does not differ from that measured as

; 12 month expected credit losses. The Company uses the practical expedient in Ind AS 109

3 for measuring expected credit losses for trade receivables using a provision matrix based on
: ageing of receivables.

The Company uses historical loss experience and derived loss rates based on the past
twelve months and adjust the historical loss rates to reflect the information about current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. The loss
rates differ based on the ageing of the amounts that are past due and are generally higher
for those with the higher ageing.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial
assets, interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original EIR of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired financial asset is recognised using the original EIR.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and call deposits, and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

b} Financial Liabilities
The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilites at fair valye through profit or loss. Such liabilities shall be
subsequently measured at fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payabig@ appropriate.

7 N
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1.6

1.7

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counter party.

Equity instruments:

Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or other financial
assets. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issuance costs.

lnventories:

Raw Materials and Packing Materials are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. The
cost formulae used is on Weighted Average basis. If the decline in price of materials
indicates that the cost of finished goods exceeds net realisable value, the materials are
written down to net realisable value; cost is calculated on weighted average basis.

Finished Goods and Work—in-Progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
In respect of finished goods, cost includes materials, appropriate share of uilities, other
overheads and applicable excise duty. Trading Goods are valued at lower of cost (on
weighted average basis) and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Traded Goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Proceeds in respect of sale of raw maierial (not significant) are credited to respective head.
Obsolete, defective and unserviceable inventory are duly provided for.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards in respect
of ownership of products are transferred by the Company and no significant uncertainty exist
regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods as well as
regarding its ultimate collection. Revenue from product sales is stated net of returns, sales

tax and applicable trade discounts and al!owancef,fgﬁg%%pge from product sales includes
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b)

d)

1.8

1.10

excise duty, wherever applicable. Sales are also netted off for probable saleable and non-
saleable return of goods from the customers, estimated on the basis of historical data of such
returns.

Revenue (including in respect of insurance or other claims, interest etc.) is recognised when
it is reasonable to expect that the ultimate collection will be made.

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive the payments is
established,

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the vear in which the
goods are exported and no significant uncertainty exist regarding its ultimate collection.

(a) Excise Duty and CENVAT:

In accordance with the method of accounting regularly employed by the Company, Cenvat
has been accounted on the basis of “exclusive method” as recommended by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India wherever applicable.

b} Goods & Service Tax:

Effective 1st July, 2017 on introduction of GST, input tax credit has been accounted on the
basis of “exclusive method” and no provision for tax is required to be made on finished goods
lying at factories as the taxable event in as per the provisions of the GST law is supply and
not manufacturing. v

Foreign currency transactions:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of
the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The functional and
presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupees.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Emplovee Benefits:

Post Employment Benefits and Other Long Term Benefits:

i) Defined Contribution Plan:

Company's contribution for the year paid/payable to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company's contributions towards
provident fund for eligible employees are considered to be defined contribution plan for which
the Company made contribution on monthly basis.
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1.12

if) Defined Benefit and Other Long Term Benefit Plans:

Company’s liabilities towards defined benefit plans and other long term benefits viz. gratuity
and compensated absences expected to occur after twelve months, are determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial valuations under the Projected Unit Credit Method
are carried out at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Other Comprehensive income in the period of occurrence of such gains and
losses. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service
cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets, if any.

Short term Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits are benefits payable and recognised in 12 months. Short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees
are recognised undiscounted during the year as the related service are rendered by the
employee,

Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax payable or recoverable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because some items of
income or expense are taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using Indian tax rates and
laws that have been enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority.

The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in the future arising from
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance
Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. It is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is seftled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carry-forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net
amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and only when the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set-off the current iﬁcam@}axw\%
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1.13

1.14

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as
an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by
the ICAl the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and
shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit Entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal Income Tax during
the specified period.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs aitributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for
its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they are incurred

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant
provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However,
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent
asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Earnings per share (‘EPS’):

Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity
and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the results
would be anti-dilutive.

Government Grants:

Grants related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in
the Statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the
asset. Such allocation fo income is usually made over the periods and in the proportions in
which depreciation on related assets is charged. Government Grants of revenue nature is
reduced from related expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of its receipt or
when there is a reasonable assurance of its being received.
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117 Operating Leases:

Assets taken on lease under which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments under
operating leases are recognised as expenses on straight line basis over the primary period of

lease only if lease rentals are not linked to inflation in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The company prepares its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS as issued by the MCA,
the application of which often requires judgments to be made by management when formulating the
company’s financial position and results. The directors are required to adopt those accounting
policies most appropriate to the company's circumstances for the purpose of presenting fairly the
company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

In determining and applying accounting policies, judgment is often required in respect of items
where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the reported results or net asset position of the Company should it later be
determined that a different choice would be more appropriate.

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its critical
accounting estimates and, accordingly, provide an explanation of each below. The discussion below
should also be read in conjunction with the Company's disclosure of significant accounting policies
which are provided in note 1 to the separate financial statements, ‘Significant accounting policies'.

a) Estimate of current and deferred tax

The Company’s tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges. The calculation of the Company's total tax charge necessarily involves a degree
of estimation and judgement in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as
appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may
give rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the Company's structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement
more challenging. The resolution of issues is not always within the contro! of the Company
and it is often dependent on the efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Issues can, and often do, take many years to
resolve. Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting period result from payments
on account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result there can be substantial
differences between the tax charge in the Separate Statement of Profit and Loss and tax

payments.
b} Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition. of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that
sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal
of temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits, reference
is made to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the temporary differences are related

to losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the availability of the losses to offset
against the future taxable profits. :

¢} Estimation of useful life

The useful life used to amortise or depreciale intangible assets or property, plant and
equipment respectively relates to the expected future performance of the assels acquired
and management’s judgement of the period over which economic benefit will be derived from
the asset. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. Increasing an asset's expected life or its residual value would result in a reduced
depreciation charge in the Statement of Profit and Lo§s
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d)

e)

g)

The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed annually for appropriateness. The lives are
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events
which may impact their life such as changes in technology.

Provision for trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based
on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. Individual trade
receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the
exposures to contingent liabilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims
subject to negotiated settlement, mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as
other contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending
claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial
settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may
be different from the originally estimated provision.

Provision for Expected Sales Returns

In determining the provision for anticipated sales returns, estimates for probable saleable
and non-saleable returns of goods from the customers are made on the basis of historical
data of such retumns.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Company’s assets and liabiliies are measured at fair value for the financial
reporting purposes.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of
various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 3.
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
PARTICULARS 34ist March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
3,2 1 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
UNQUOTED ;
INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SHARES
{at fair value through profit & loss)
9000 equity shares of Rs, 10/~ each 0.90 0.90
of Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited
2500 equity shares of Rs.10/- each of The 0.25 0.25
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited
TOTAL 1.18 1.15
1.3 : NON CURRENT LOANS:
Unsecured, Considered Good:
Security Deposits 89,42 102.14
Other Loans and Advances 80.48 101.92
TOTAL 169.90 204.06
3.4 : OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS :
Capital Subsidy Receivable (Refer Note 3.44) 500.00 -
Bank Deposits with maturity more than 12 months 14.21 2.25
Interest on deposit accrued but not due 0.81 0.27
TOTAL 515,02 2.52
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CACHET PHARMAGEUTICALS PVT, LTD.

NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.5 Tax expense

{A) Amounts recognised In profit and loss (Rs in Lakhs)
Faor the year For the year
; ended ended
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2018 2017
Cuirent income tax - -
Deferred income tax lability / {(asszet), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (554.35) (107.94)
Change in tax rate 8.12 (7.03)
Prior period tax adjustment . - 48.82
Deferred tax expense (548.23) (66.15)
Tax expense for the vear {548.23) {68.15}
B) Amounts recognised In other comprehensive incomes (Rs In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
3ist March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Particulars Tax Tax
Before tax | (expense) Ngx()f B?;?(re (expense) Net of tax
benefit benefit
Items that will not be raclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 70,33 (21.94)] 48,38 | (44.45) 14.69 (29.785)
70.33 (21.94)] 48,38 | (44.45) 14.69 (28.75)
(C) Reconciliation of effective tax rate (Rs in Lakhs)
(%) For the year (%) | Forthe year
ended ended
Particulars 3t March, 31st March,
2018 2017
Profit before tax {1,703.45) (479.73)
Tax using the Company's domastic tax raie {Current year 30.9% and Previcus Year 33.063%) 30.9% (626.37)] 30.90% (148.23)
Increase in tax rate 0% (6.12) 0.0% 7.03
Tax effect of:
Additional deduction allowed under income tax act in respect of Section 80(IE) 0.0% - 0.0% -
Expense/income not deductible/includad for tax purposes 0.9% (1871} -5.5% 26.20
Income exempt from income taxes 0.0% 0.0% -
Others 0.0% (0.03)1 -10.2% 48.86
31.8% (548,23} 15.3% (66.158)

The Company’s weighted average tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 were 30.80% and 30.90%,
was Rs.(548.23}) Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2018, as compared to income tax experse of Rs.(686.15) Lakhs fo

The Company's effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2018 was 31.80% (March 31, 2017 : 15.30%)

(D) Tax assets

respectively. Income tax expense
1 the year ended March 31, 2017.

Particulars As at 31st March,
arieulars As at 31st March, 2018 2017
Non current tax assets (net)
Advance payment of Income Tax (nef of provision) 200.58 203.12
206.53 203.12
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.5 Tax expense
{£) Movement in deferred tax assets & liabilities

(Rs in Lakhs)

3ist March, 2018

_— Net balanice | Recognised In | Recognised Deferred tax | Deferred tax
Particulars Aprit1, 2017 | profitorloss |  inOCI Net asset liability
Deferred tax liabilities -
Property, plant and equipment (536.43) (210.05) (746.48) (746.48)
Deferred tax assets - -

Trade Receivable 129.10 59.71 188.81 188.81

Carried forward of Business Loss 114.62 491.41 606.03 606.03

Loans and borrowings - -

Employee benefits 280.32 41.29 (21.94) 309.67 300.67

Provision on sales return 124.71 20.81 1456.62 145,52

Deferred Government Grant 145.08 145.06 146,06

Provision for Doubtful Debts - -

MAT Credit Entitlernent 143.33 - 143.33 143.33

Deferred tax assets (Liabilities) 265.65 548.22 {21.94) 791.93 1,638.42 {746.48)

Offsetting of deferred tax assets & deferred tax liablities {746.48) 746.48

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 265.65 548,22 {21.94) 791.93 791.94 -

Movemaent in deferred tax assets & labilities {Rs in Lakhs)
Jist March, 2017

. Net balance | Recognised in | Recognised Deferred tax | Deferred tax

Particulars 1st April 2016 | profitorloss |  in OCI Net asset liability

Deferred tax Habilities

Property, plant and equipment (487.18) (49.25) (536.43) (536.43)

Deferred tax assets - - - -

Trade Receivable 125.13 3.96 128.10 129.10

Carried forward of Business Loss B 114.62 114.62 114.62

Loans and borrowings - - - -

Employee benefits 247.80 27.82 1489 290.32 280.32

Provision on sales return 106.89 17.82 124,71 124.71

MAT credit entittement - - - 143.33

Deferred tax assets (Liabilities) {7.34) 114.97 14.69 122,32 §02.08 {536.43)

Offsetting of deferred tax assets & deferred tax lablities {802.08) 802.08

Net deferred tax assots / {liabilities) ] {7.34) 114.97 14.69 122.32 “ 265.65

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax fiabilities and the

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

In India, in case income tax payable on book profit (that is Minimum alternate tax - "'MAT') exceeds the income tax payable on tax profit, the differential
amount shall be carried forward as a MAT credit for a period of 15 years. The said MAT credit can be offset against any future income tax payable. The
Company has carry forward amount of MAT of Rs 143.33 Lakhs as at March 31, 2018 (Rs. 143.33 Lakhs as at March 31, 2017).

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of
deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the

relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.
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WAWRE L FHARMAGEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES 7O THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Note: Above trade recesivable includes amount due from related parties Rs.2734.90 Lakhs
(Previous year Rs.217.10 Lakhs) (Refer Note 3.96)

Ag at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Rs, in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
3.8 QTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS:
Capital Advances 27.88 161.20
TOTAL 27.85 161.20
3.7 ; INVENTORIES:
Valued at lower of cost or net realisable Value: (Refer Note 1.7)
Raw and packing materials 1,491.93 880.79
Waork-in-progress 98.13 40.09
Finished goods 697.63 839.76
Goods in transit (finished goods) 130.27 51.89
Stock-in-trade 1,355.88 2,460.13
Goods in transit (stock in trade) 428.57 55.80
TOTAL 4,202.38 4,338.45
3.8.: TRADE RECEIVABLES:
Unsecured;
Considered Good 5,376.28 4,957.48
Considered Doubtful B805.15 417.79
5,981.43 B,375.27
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts (605.15) (417.79)
§,376.28 4,957.48
TOTAL 5,376.28 4,957.49
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Rs. in Lakhs Res. in Lakhs
3.9 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash on hand 12.42 4,11
Balance with Banks:
in Current Accounts 388.72 408.76
TOTAL 401.14 443.86
340 OTHER BANK BALANCES:
Bank Deposits with maturity within 12 months 8.48 8.42
TOTAL 8.48 8.42
3.11: CURRENT LOANS:
Loans and Advances to Employees 102.37 123.71
TOTAL 102.37 123.71
312 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS ;
Interest on Deposits, accrued but not due 5.03 2.46
Export Incentives Receivable 83.28 34.79
GST Budgetary Support Receivable 11.49 -
TOTAL 99.77 37.25
3,13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
Unsecured, Considered Good. unless otherwise stated;
Balances with Government Authorities 827.67 134.20
Advance ta Suppliers:
Congidered Good 21.01 12.84
Prepaid Expenses 80.05 88.05
Other Receivables .62 1,56
TOTAL 930,25 236.65
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CACHET PHARMAGEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{b} Rights attached to Equity Shares:

for one vote per share held.

shareholders.

(¢} Details of holding company

The Company has only one class of equity shares with voting rights having a par vaiue of Rs. 100/

Asg at 31st As at 31st

PARTICULARS March, 2018 March, 2017
Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
3:.34 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:
Authorised Share Capital:
40,000 (previous year: 16,000) equity shares of Rs. 100/ each 40.00 40.00
40.00 40.00
lssued, Subscribed and Paid up:
17,834 (previous year: 17.834) equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up 17.83 17.83
TOTAL 17,83 17.83

{a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year;

As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2018 March, 2017
Numnbers of shares outstanding as af the beginning of the year 17,834 15,000
Add: Shares issued during the year - 2,834
Less: Shares bought back during the year - -
Numbers of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 17,834 17,834

per share. Each shareholder is eligible

As at 318t March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

Name Number of Percentage of Number offl  Percentage of

Shares Holding Shares Holding
Alkem Laboratories Lid. 10,484 58.79% 10,484 58.79%
{d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at 31st March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

Name of the sharsholders: Number of Percentage of Number off  Percentage of
Shares Holding Shares Holding
Alkem Laboratories Ltd. (The Holding Company) 10,484 58.79% 10,484 58.79%
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS March, 2018 March, 2017
Rs, Iy Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
2.46: NON CURRENT BORROWINGS:
Secured;
Terrn Loan From Bank
From Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited 1,813,113 2,022.40
Hire Purchase:
From Finance Companies 28.22 21.15
Unsecured;
Loans and Advances from related parties 722.02 490.19
Other loans & advances 139.25 143.29
TOTAL 2,702.62 2,677.03

Notes:

(1) Term Loan from The Saraswat Co-op Bank Lid is secured against mortagage of company's Land & Building , Plant & Machinery situated at
Khasara No. 341 (P) & 354 Village, Jholungey, Namthang Namchi Dist. South Sikkim State, Plot No- 1582 to 1586 Baddi, Himachal Pradesh and at

Plot No. C- §82 A, RIICO Industrial Area, Bhiwadi , Rajasthan .

(2) The Loan is further Guaranteed by the Directors of the company.
(3) Hire Purchase loans from finance companies are secured against respective assets financed by them.

(4) There is no default, as at the balance sheet date, in repayment of any of the above loans.

Rate of
Monthly {Bal BEMI) Principal .
Term Loaris lnt(s;r’«)est Installment (No. of instaliments) Qutstanding Maturity Date
Term Loan ¢
TL-Seraswat Co-Op Bank (S-78(Land & Bidg)-BD) 12.50 2,37,500 1 2,37.500 30-04-2018
TL-Saraswat Co-Op Bank (81-93) 11,78 4,17,000 11 45,71,000 28-02-2019
TL-Saraswat Co-Op Bank (SL.-140-SK) 12.50 15,60,000 83 1284,40,000 03-11-2025
TiL-Saraswat Co-Op Bank (SL-141-SK) 12.50 7.80,000 83 650,00,000 03-11-2025
Ti-Saraswat Co-Op Bank {SL-142-8K) 12.50 48,000 83 40,00,000 03-11.2025
Hire Purchase Loan :
Kotat Mahindra Prime Ltd (CF-13000835) 160.00 18,841 12 2,44,263 05-02-2018
Kotat Mahindra Prime Lid (CF-13236581) 10.00 39,814 14 5,569,209 05-06-2019
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Litd (CF-15575086) 8.25 18,330 36 7,02,304 05-02-2021
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (CF-15348350) 8.78 19,010 29 557,711 01-12-2020
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd {CF«14505806) 8.91 32,340 24 7,62.095 08-05-2020
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (CF«MTQSSSO) 8.86 59,850 25 15,02,353 05-07-2020
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (CF-14605’1 08) 8.77 36,038 24 8,80,163 01-06-2020
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (CF-11622694) 11,10 21,855 i 19,759 01-04-2018
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd (CF-11682263) 10.66 19,332 2 38,158 01-05-2018
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (CF-11682248) 10.66 19,332 2 38,1565 01-05-2018
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (C-11812083) 10,63 31,596 3 92,113 01-06-2018
HP - Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd (CF-12406722) 10.73 13,760 8 1,05,904 01-11-2018
HP » Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid (CF~12807058) 10.48 20,898 g 1.78,925 01-12-2018
HP - MDFC (37423186} 8.65 22,473 10 2,35,677 05-02-2019
13,16 : NON CURRENT PROVISIONS:
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note 3.32) 617.93 557.88
Compensated Leave 245.78 243.79
TOTAL 863.71 801.65
S.47: QTHER NOK CURRENT LIABHLITIES:
Deferrad Income on Goverriment Grants (Refer Note 3.44) 431.60 -
TOTAL 431.60 -
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31st As at 31s¢
PARTICULARS farch, 2018 March, 2017
Rs. in Lakhs Rs, in Lakhs
318 ; CURRENT BORROWINGS:
Secured:
From Saraswat Co-Op Bank Lid. :
Overdrafts 48924 489.74
Cash Credit 1,894.82 1,874.14
Packing Credit - Export 568.16 391.14
TOTAL 296219 2,765.02
Notes:
The Overdraft is against the Fixed Deposit Recsipt of Rs. 10 Crores provided by the Holding Company,
The Cash credit is secured against hypothecation of company's entire stacks, hook debts and receivables.
The Packing Credit (past shipment) is secured against the hypothecation of export receivables backed by letter of credit,
Above are further Guarantead by the Directors of the company,
3.18: TRADE PAYABLES:
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 3.31) 3,994.74 2,439.24
Others 4,419.68 3,250.33
TOTAL 8,414.42 5,689.57
1. Above trade payable includes amaount due to related parties Rs.102,18 Lakhs (Previous year Re.24.14 Lakhs) Refer Note 3.34
2.The above disclosure is made based on the Information avaitable with the Company and Auditors have relied upon it,
3:20 : QTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABHITIES:
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings : (Refer Note 3.15)
{i) Term Loan From Bank 219.36 218.94
(i) Unsecured Loans M 79.55
(ili) Hire Purchase Loans 30.95 22.50
Deposits 706.60 279.70
Employee payables 297.53 439,82
Accrual for Expenses 422.68 359.36
TOTAL 1,677.12 1,399.56
3.21: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Advance from Customers 31104 58.05
Deferred Income on Government Grants {Refer Note 3.44) 33.33 -
Due to statutory authorities 96,358 148.37
TOTAL 440.69 206.43
" Statutory dues payable includes VAT.CBT.ESIC,PF TDS Service Tax,GST Payable.
3.22 : CURRENT PROVISIONS:
Provision for Anticipated Sales Return (Refer Note 3.34) 466.42 403.60
Provision for Employes Benefits:
Gratuity (Refer Note 3.32) 57.34 89.98
Compensated Leave 31.98 47.91
TOTAL 588.74 541.49
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CAGHET PHARMACEUTICALE PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 8: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 3Mst March, 2018 318t March, 2017
Rs, in Lakhs Hs. in Lakhs
3.23 ; REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:
Sale of Products 30,423.64 29,568.28
Other Operating Revenus:
Manufacturing Charges 526.39 485.70
Export Incentives 132.14 109.31
GST Budgetary Support 11.49 -
Government Subsidy Income (Refer Note 3.44) 35.07 -
Sale of Scrap 30.83 21.56
TOTAL 31,159.56 30,194.84
3.24 : OTHER INCOME:
Interest on Bank Deposits 2.86 0.81
Other Interest 10.06 16.26
Dividend Income 0.18 0.13
nsurance Claim 4,07 1.39
Miscellaneous Recelpts 1.80 0.56
Commission and Discount 3.67 4.65
Net (Loss) / Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 38.36 (10.861)
TOTAL 62.00 13.20
3.25 ; COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED:
Raw Material Consumed 4,828.06 3,826.17
Packing Material Consumed 2,726.86 2,275.80
TOTAL 7,564.92 6,100.97
3.26 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE:
Opening Stock:
Finished Goods 891.65 569.12
Stock-in-Trade 2,515.93 1,787.05
Work-in-Progress 40.09 26.81
3,447.87 2,382.98
Less: Closing Stock:
Finished Goods 1,286.48 891.65
Stock-in-Trade 1,385.85 2,515.93
Work-in-Progress 98.13 40.09
2,710.46 3,447.66
TOTAL 737.21 (1,064,68)
327 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE;
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 5,338.95 §,038.45
Contrbution to Provident and Other Fund 473,37 356.57
Employees’ Welfare Expenses 193.32 147.40
TOTAL 6,008.64 5,542 43
3.28 : FINANGE COST:
Interest on Borrowings 642.18 332.79
Interest on defined benefit iabilities 41.25 38.37
OQther Borrowing Costs 12,78 11.49
696.18 382.66




CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS Jist March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs

3.29 . OTHER EXPENSES:
Consumption of Storas and Spares 102.45 55.89
Job Work Charges 61.08 418.82
Excise Duty 165.89 637.89
Power and Fuel 436.02 265.97
Rent 243.38 203.82
Rates & Taxes 102.04 62.45
Insurance 121.42 113.61
Commission to C & F Agents 246.82 309.36
Sales Tax, Octroi Duty & Entry Tax 83.27 182.35
Freight and Distribution Expenses 848.29 991.58
Date Expired Goods 444,23 405,70
Marketing Expenses 1,232.87 1,535.38
Travelling & Conveyance 1,396.89 1.364.83
Repairs:

Buildings 3719 11.158

Plant & Machineries 58.08 50.05

Others 57.89 40.85
Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipments (net) 4,90 25.56
Legal & Professional Fees 175.19 171.22
Allowance for Doubtful Debts 214,07 35.28
Contract labour charges 478.54 221.08
Miscellaneous Expenses 865.68 876.15

TOTAL 7,386.18 7.984,01
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.30

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

a) Contingent Liabilities not Provided For

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Sr.Mo.  |Particulars 31st March, | 31st March,
2018 2017
1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
. Service tax demand disputed in appeal (advances paid in dispute
M lin Rs.Nil (P. Y. Rs.Nil)) 7.03 7.03
(i) Sales Tax/VAT demand disputed in appeal (advances paid in 8.36 80.78
dispute Rs. 3.36 Lakhs (P. Y. Rs. Nilj) ' '
(il Income Tax demand disputed in appeal for AY 2015-16 (advances 65.49
paid in dispute Rs. in Rs.3 lakhs) ‘ .
income Tax demand disputed at DCIT Circle- for AY 2012-13 6.29
(advances paid in dispute Rs. Nil) ‘ )
(i) Income Tax demand disputed at CPC for AY 2016-17 (advances 14.65
paid in dispute Rs. Nil) ’ )
‘ Total 101.82 87.81

Management considers that the excise duty, custom duty, sales tax and income tax demands received from
the authorities are not tenable against the Company, and therefore no provision for these tax contingencies
have been made.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for,
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities wherever applicable, in its financial
statement. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have materially adverse
effect on its financial statements.

b) Commitments

{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Sr.No.  |[Particulars 34st March, | 31st March,
2018 2017
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
1 Capital Accounts (advances paid Rs. 12.61 lakhs {Previous Year 112.37 651.33
Rs. 316.04 Lakhs))
2 Qutstanding Bank Guarantees 2.10 2.10
Total 114.47 653.43
3.31 Dues to Micro, Medium and Small enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force
from 2 October 2008, certain disclosures are required to be made refating to Micre and Small Enterprises.
On the basis of the information and records available with the Management, the outstanding dues fo the
Micro & Small enterprises as defined in MSMED are set out in following gisclosure :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Sr.No.  |Particulars 34st March, | 31st March,
2018 2017
1 g;tgclpai amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year 3,994.74 2.439.24
5 Tinterest due thereon ‘ S 86.09 63.14




CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small
3 and Mediurm Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, « -
2006)

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2008.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of

each accounting year, 86.09 63.14

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as

7 above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of - -
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act,
2008.

Note : The company has written back opening provision of Interest of Rs.63.14 Lakhs in view of no claims
made by the suppliers.

3.32  Disclosure of Employee Benefits as per Indian Accounting Standard 19 is as under:

I} Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and superannuation fund 1o a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund
the benefits. The provident fund plan is operated by the Government administered employee
provident fund. Eligible employees receive the benefits from the said Provident Fund. Both the
employees and the Company make monthly contribution to the Provident Fund plan equal to a
specific percentage of the covered employee's salary. The Company has no obligations other than
to make the specified contributions.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars J1st March, | 31st March,
2018 2017
Contribution to Provident Fund 259.83 242,27
Contribution to ESIC 68.34 53.91
Total 328.17 296.18

i) Defined benefit plan;
The Company earmarks liability towards unfunded Group Gratuity provides for payment to vested
employees as under:

@) On Normal retirement/ early refirement/ withdrawalfresignation:

As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service.

b) On death in service:
As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872 without any vesting period.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
gratully was carrled out as at 31st March, 2018 by an independent actuary. The present value of
the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The following table sets out the stalus of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company's financial statements as at 31 March 2018 »

™,
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CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Sr. No. |Particulars 34ist March, | 31st March,
2018 2017
1) Reconciliation in present value of obligations (PVO) ~ defined benefit obligation !
Current Service Cost 77.35 64.96
past Service Cost 41.82 -
interest Cost 41.25 38.37
Actuarial (gain) / losses {70.33) 44 .45
Benefits paid (62.68) (28.45
PVO at the beginning of the year 647.86 528.58
PVO at end of the year 675.26 647.86
i Reconciliation of PVO and fair value of plan assels:
PVO at end of year 675.26 647.86
Actuarial gain/(losses) - -
Funded status (675.26) (647.86)
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the palance sheet {675.26) (647.86)
(Rs. in.Lakhs)
As at As at
&y, No. |Particulars 31st March, | 31st March,
2018 2017
1) Net cost for the year
Current Service cost 77.35 64.96
Interest cost 41.25 38.37
Expected return on plan assets - -
Actuarial {(gain) / losses (70.33) 44 45
Net cost 48.27 147.78
V) |Assumption used in accounting for the gratuity plan:
Discount rate (%) 6.69 6.69
Salary escalation rate (%) 5,00

5.00

Discount rate; The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of indian government
securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Salary Escalation Rate: The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial

valuation, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion &

supply and demand in the employment market.

The amounts of the present value of the obligation and experience adjus

liabilities are as below |

nd other relevant factors such as

tment arising on plan

{(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars 31st March, |  31st March,
2018 2017

Befined Benefit Obligation at end of the period 675.26 647.86
Bian assets at end of the period “ .
Funded assets (675.26) (647.86)]
Experience gain/loss adjustment on plan liabilities 48,27 147.78
Experience gain/loss adjustment on plan assels - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in assurnption (70.33) 44.45

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,

holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined b

amounts shown below.

snefit obligation by the

(Rs, in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
lncrease Decrease increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (46407 51.60 (47.45) 54,28

Future salary growth (1% moverment) /4860500 (43.62) 48.38 (44.14)
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3.33

3.34

3.38

Earnings per share (EPS)

; For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
Profit /(loss) after tax atiributable to o uit Rs.i
shareh(oldezs o Laihns A (1,155.23) (413.62)
Number of equily shares at the beginning of the year Nos. 17,834 15,000
Equity shares issued during the period Nos. - 2,834
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the | Nos, 17,834 17,834
Weighted average number of equity shares Nos. B 17,834 16,653
Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted InRs, (A7B) (6,477.66) (2,483.77)

Disclosure As per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 37) for provisions is as under:

Provision for Anticipated Sales Return:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

; As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 403.60 323.33
Add: Provision made during the year 319.08 378.74
Less: Amount used/utilized during the year 256.27 298.47
Carrying amount at the end of the year 466.41 403.60

Segment Reporting

The Company is in the pharmaceutical business. As the Company has a single reportable segment, the segment wise
disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 on Operating Segment is not applicable. In compliance to the said standard,

Entity-Wide disclosures are as under :

{Rs. in Lakhs)

sr. No. Particulars For the year ended] For the year ended
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
a) Revenues from external customers attributed fo the country
of domicile and attributed to all foreign countries from
which the company derives revenues
Revenue from the Country of Domicile- India 27,277.83 27,114.84
Revenue from foreign countries 3,145.81 2,453.44
Total 30,423,864 29,568.28
b) Revenue from one customer {including group entifes,
excluding taxes), which is more than 10% of the total
revenue from India.
Alkem Laboratories Limited 10,401.66 5,285.18
Total 10,401.88 529515
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3.36  Information on related party fransactions as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 {Ind AS 24) on
related party disclosures for the year ended 31st March, 2018,

A, List of related parties and their relationship
A Key Management Personnel (HMP) ¢

Name of the KMP Designation

Mr. Satish Kumar Singh Managing Director

Mr. Lalan Kumar Singh Whole-time Director

Mr. Arunkumar Deshmukh independent Director

Dr.(Mrs.) Anuja Madhurendra Sinha fndependent Director

B Relatives of Key Management Personne! (K.aW.P.) with whorn transactions have taken place during the year:
Samprada Singh, Premiata Singh, Sandeep Singh, Sarvesh Singh, Balmikl Prasad Singh, Nawal Kishore
Singh, Anita Singh, Prerna Kurnar, Sakshi Sinha

Entities in which Key Management Personnel’s and their relatives have significant influence and with whom
transactions have taken place during the year (“Entitles")

M/s Galpha Laboratories Ltd.

G Holding Company :

Name of the Company Gountry of Incorporation

Alikern Laboratories Lid.(w.e f. 27" March 2015) tndia

D Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

Name of the Companies

Gounty of lncorporation

Alkem Laboratories (NIG) Limited Nigeria
Alkem Laboratories (PTY) Limited South Africa
Alkem Pharma GmbH Germany
Alkem Laboratories Corporation Philippines
$ & B Holdings B.V. Netherlands
Pharmacor Ply Limited Australia
Ascends Laboratories SDN BHD. Malaysia
Ascends Laboratories SpA Chile

Alkem Laboratoties Korea Inc Korea
Pharmacor Lid, Kenya

$ & B Pharma iInc.

United States of America

The Pharma Network, LLP

Kazakhstan

Ascend Laboratories (UK) Lid,

United Kingdom

Enzene Biosciences Lid. India
indchemie Health Specialities Pvt. Lid. India
Ascend Laboratorigs Lid. (with effect from 7th September, 2017) Canada
Alkem Foundation {with effect from 14th Decerober, 2017) india

The Pharmanetwork, LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of 8 & B holdings B.V.)

United States of America

Ascend Laboatories, LLG (wholly owned by The Pharma Network, LLP)

United States of America

Pharma Network SpA (with effect from 27th March, 2018 (Wholly owned by Ascend

{.aboratories SpA)

Chile
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336 Information on related party transactions
related party disclasures for the year ended 31st March, 20414,

B. Detalls of Transactlons with Related Partles

as required by Indian Accounting $tandard 24 {Ind AS 24) on

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31st March, 2018
Relatives of Key
: Key Management Holding Feliow
4r. No.|Particulars fWanagement Total
Personriel Porsonnal Company Subsidiaries
A B C 3]
) ! 51.56 . - - 51,56
1 ID *
irector Remuneration (€147, - - - 5145
. - 1.00 - - - 1.00
2  Director 8 Fee:
ctor Sifting Fees ) - = - (0.95)
§6.16 - “ - 66,16
3 linteres @ ki -
erest expense on loans taken {45.98) - - - 745 95)
4 llLoans Repai > : - - - -
s Repaid {330.96) - - {330.28)
130.00 30.00 - - 160.00
5 Lo T
ans Taken (535.00) " - N {228 00)
. - 32.42 486.64 147.42 866.48
6  {Purch f F G
rchase of Finished Goods " (16.41) (317.38) (56.77) (390.56)
7 sale of Fini - - 10,397.55 - 10,397.55
ale of Finished Goods . T (6,285.02) . (5,285.02)
) ) - 0.08 4.11 0.03 4.22
8 le of
Sale of Raw & Packing Material - .07 {i0.13) . A0.14)
. ; ~ 0.18 5.34 0.34 5.86
9 {Purch f
urchase of Raw & Packing Material - . 0.64) - 10.643
10 |Purchase of Capital Matarial - - 306 - 3:06
) ) - - 527,38 - 527,39
1 f
1 Rendering of Services - - (405.70) “ {495.70)
- - 33.34 - 33,34
12 [Payment of Rent - - (36.93) - {36.93)
) - - 275 - 2,75
13 {Reimbursement of Expenses - - (E1.10) - 51.10)
248,72 62.68 11,460.18 147,79 11,819.38
Figures in the brackets are the corresponding figures of the previous year. )
C. Key management personnel compernisation
Key management personne! compensation comprised the following ¢ (Rg. in Lakhs)
For the year For theé year
Particulars anded 31t March, [ended 31st March,
2018 2017
Short term employee benefits $2.586 52.42
Post-employment benefits 10.00 -

Based on ihe recomendation of the Nomination and Remuneration commitiee, all decisions relatin

Board of Directors of the Company, in accordance with shareholders' approval, wherever ngcess

D. Balance due from / o the related Parties

ary.

g {0 the remuneration of the direclors are taken by the

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 318t March, 2018
Sr. No.|Parliculars Key Management Rggﬂ:zz:::?y Holding Fellow Total
Parsonngl Personnel Company Subsidiaries
1. _iSecurity Deposit Receivable - - 5.00 - 5.00
2 Outstanding Receivable - - 2,134,980 - 2,1384.80
3 _ |Outstanding Payable - 0.01 102.16 102.17
{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017
8r. No.|Particulars ey Management Relatives of Key Holding Fellow
Personnel Management Qompany Subsidiaries Total
Personnel
1..Secuty Deposit Receivable - “ 5.00 - §.00
2 10Ouistanding Receivable - - 217.10 - 217.1Q
3__Qutstanding Payabie 502.48 1640 - 24,14 §43.02

All the above related party transactions are made in the norm

al course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in an arm's length

transactions,
3.37  Payment to auditors (excluding service ax/GST)
(Rs. in Lakhg)
For the year
Particulars F;;r tth f?ﬁyf:k;‘ 2?)?2? ended 31st
st harch, March, 2017
As Auditor
Audit feas 8.00 8.00
Tax audit fees 8.00 4.00
Total
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Financial Instruments - Fair values

Accounting classification and falr values

(Rs, in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2018

particulars Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL EVTOCH | Amotised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 401.14 401.14 -
Qther Bank Balances 8.48 8.48 -
Non-current investments 1.15 118 1.15 115
Current investments 169.90 169.90 “
Trade and other receivables 5,376.28 5,376.28 .
Other Current financial asset 98.77 99.77
1.18 - 6,055.57 6,056,72 118 . - 1.15
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings (Including current 2,702.62 2,702.62 B
maturity of Long term borrowings)
Short term borrowings 2.962.19 2,062.19 B
Trade and other payables 8,414.42 8,414.42 -
Other Non-Current financial liabilites 1.677.12 1,677.12 -
- - 15,756.35 15,786.35 - “ » “
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2017
Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars
FVTPL FYTOCH | Amotised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 413.87 413.87 -
Other Bank Balances 8.42 8.42 B
Non-current investments 1145 1.15 1.1% 1.15
Current investments 204.07 204.07 -
Trade and other racelvables 4,957.48 4,957.48 -
Other Current financial asset 37.28 37.25
1.15 “ 5,621,410 5.622.25 1.18 - - 1.45
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings (ncluding current 2,8677.03 2.677.03 B
maturity of Long term borrowings)
Short tarm borrowings 2,765.02 2.765.02
Trade and other payables 5,689.57 §,689.87 -
Other Current financial Habiliies 1,399.57 1,399.67 -
- - 12,531.19 12,531,119 - . “ -

i. Risk management framework

The Company's risk management policies are establishe
monitor risks and adherence to lirmits. Risk management policies and systerns ar
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,

which afl employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit cornmitiee oversees how manag

d to identify and analyse the risks faced by the C
@ reviewed regularly o
aims to maintain

of the risk managernent framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
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ement monitors compliance with the company's risk managerent policies and procedures, a

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

ornpany, to set appropriate tisk limits and controls and to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
a disciplined and constructive control environment in

nd reviews the adeguacy
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3.39 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and
investments in debt securities.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure;
Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to credit rigk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate,

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expecied osses in respect
of trade and other receivables.

At March 31, 2018, the maximum exposure 10 credit risk for trade and other receivables by geographic region
was as follows. )

{Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31 March, | ended 31 March,
2018 2017
India 4,876.64 4431.24
Other regions 499.64 526.24
Total 5,376.28 4 957 48

At 31st March, 2018, the Company had exposure to only one type of counter party.

At 31st March, 2018, the carring amount of company's most suugnificant custorner is Rs., 2134.90 lakhs
{previous year Rs. 217.10 lakhs).

Impairment
At 31st March, 2018, the ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows ;

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2018|31st March, 2017
Neither past due nor impaired 3,208.57 2,014.81
Past due 1180 days 2,134.80 452.56
Past due more than 180 days - -
Total 5,340.46 2,467.37

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as
follows :

(Rs, In Lakhs)

3ist March, 2018 d1st March, 2017
Individual Colipctive Individual Collective
Particulars impairments Impalrments impairments Impairments
Balance as af begining of the vear 158.64 259.14 158.64 219.86
impairment loss recognised - 187.36 “ 39.28
Amounts written off - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 168.64 446.51 158.64 250,14
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% 40 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

it Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are seitled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Gompany’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabiliies when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable iosses of risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date. The amounis are gross and
undiscounted, and include astimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

31st March, 2018 Carrying Total 2 months 2-12 1.2 years | 2-5 years More than 8
amount or less months Vears

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Rupee term loans from banks 2.032.49 2.032.49 58.48 276.17 286.56 859.68 551.60

Working capital loans from banks 3,854.41 3,854.41 3,854.41 - - - -

Trade and other payables 8,414 42 841442 | 841442 - - - -

Other financial liabilities 59,18 59,18 7.26 26.84 20.77 4.31 -

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

st March, 2017 Carrying 2 months 212 More than §
amount Total or less months 1-2years | 2-6years|  yoarg

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Rupee term loans from banks 024134 | 2,241 .34 32.81 137.51 140.77 860 1,070.57

Working capital loans from banks 3,478.04 3,478.04 3,478.04 - - - ~

Trade and other payables 568957 5,689.67 5,689,567 - - « -

Other financial liabllities 43.65 43.66 - 6.31 27.54 9.81 “ -
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iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices ~ such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices ~ will affect the
Company's income or the value of ifs holdings of financial instruments, Market risk is attributable to alt market risk sensitive financial instruments
including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. We ara exposed fo market risk primarily related {o foreign exchange
rate risk. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of revenuve generating and operating activities in foreign cusrency. The objective of
market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency ravenues and costs,

Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of jts borrowings, other payables, receivables and loans and advances in foreign currency.
The functional currency of the Company is indian Rupee. The Company has exposure to USD and EURO. The Company has not hedged this

foreign currency exposure.

Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of financial assels and financial liabifities as at 31st March, 2018 and 31st March, 2017 are as below:

Particutars st March, 31st March,
2018 2018
EURO usp
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables : 2,07,128.10 5,26,224.27
2,07,128.10 5,26,224.27

Financial liabilities

Net Financial Asset/(]labilities) 2,07,128.10 §,20,224,27

Jist March, 3st March,
Particulars 2017 2017
EURO usp

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 56,009.15 8,19,874.03
56,009.15 8,19,874.03

Financial liabilities

Net Financial Asset/(Liabilities) 56,000.18 8,18,874.03
The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the vear
Average raie (INR) Year-ond spot rate {INR)

. Yist March, 31st March, 3ist Barch, 31st March,
Particulars 2018 2017 2018 2017
EURO - . 80.62 68.25
Usp - - 65.04 64.84

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various fareign currencies at 31st March would have affected the
Mmeastrement of financial instrumente denominated in foreign currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and
purchases.

Profit or luss Equity, net of tax
Effoct In INR Strenathening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

dist March, 2018
0% movemant

EURC 16.70 {(16.70) 11.54 (11.54)

UsH 34,23 {34.23) 23.65 (23.65)

L 50,93 {50.93) 35.19 {35.19)
¢ Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

Jist March, 2017
10% movement

EURO 3.88 2,68 (2.68)
usp 53.16 36.73 (36.73)
57.04 39.41 {39.41)

soan L AR VR 0 )
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4.42 Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management
Interest rate visk

interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the
risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash

flow interest rate risk is the risk that
of fluctuations in the interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Company's interest

the future cash flows of floating interest pearing investments will fluctuate because

rate risk arses from borrowings and fixed income securities. Fixed income securities exposes the

Company to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments

as reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

; Carrying amount in INR

Partioulars S1st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 513.15 547.15

Financial liabilities 5,346.97 5,371.89
(4,833.82) (4,824.74)

Variable-rate instrumenis

Financial liabilities (568.16) (391.14)

Total (5,401.98) (5,215.87

Eair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

ioss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss,
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would not have any material impact on the equity
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assures that
particular foreign cuirency exchange rates, remain constant.

at the reporting date would have increased

all other variables, in

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
INR 100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease 400 bp Increase 100 bp decrease

3tst March, 2018

Variable-rate instruments 5.68) 5.68 (3.93) 3.03
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {5.68) 5.68 (3.93) 3.93
3ist March, 2017

Variable-rate instruments (3.81) 3.91 {2.70} 2.70
Cash flow sensitivity (nef) (3.91) 3.91 {2.70) 2.70

38




CACHET PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTE - 3: NOTES TO THE FINANC

3.43 Capital Management

The Company's

confidence and to

policy is to maintain a strong capi
sustain future development of the b

IAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

tal base so as io maintain investor,
usiness. Management monitors the return on capital.

creditor and market

adjusted net debt’ io ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted
8 and borrowings and obligations under

lents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31st March, 2018 was as follows,
INR

. As at As at

Particulars 31stMarch, | 34st March,
2018 2017

Total borrowings 591512 5,763.04
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 401.14 413.87
Adjusted net debt 5,513.97 5,349,186
Total equity 4,343.24 5,450.14
Less . Hedging reserve - ~ -
Adjusted equity 4,343.24 5,450.14
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 1.27 0.98
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